
 

 

North Wales Corporate Joint Committee 
 

 

 

Meeting 
 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.00 pm, FRIDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2023 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 
(For public access to the meeting, please contact us) 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Eirian Roberts 

01286 679018 

eirianroberts3@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 20/11/23) 

Complete Agenda



 

 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Council Members 
 

Cllr. Jason McLellan - Denbighshire County Council 
Cllr. Llinos Medi Huws - Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Cllr. Charlie McCoubrey - Conwy County Borough Council 
Cllr. Mark Pritchard - Wrexham County Borough Council 

Cllr. Ian Roberts - Flintshire County Council 
Cllr. Dyfrig L Siencyn - Cyngor Gwynedd 

 
 

Eryri Member 
 

Cllr. Annwen Hughes – Eryri National Park Authority 

 
 

Chief Officers 
 

Dafydd Gibbard - Cyngor Gwynedd  
Dylan Williams - Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Rhun ap Gareth - Conwy County Borough Council 
Neal Cockerton - Flintshire County Council 

Graham Boase - Denbighshire County Council 
Ian Bancroft - Wrexham County Borough Council 

Emyr Williams – Eryri National Park Authority 
 
 

Statutory Officers 
 

Dewi Aeron Morgan – Chief Finance Officer 
Iwan G Evans – Monitoring Officer  



 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of personal interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chair for 
consideration. 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4 - 6 

 The Chair shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 
27th October, 2023 be signed as a true record. 

 

 

5.   STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE - APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS 
 

7 - 11 

 Iwan Evans, Monitoring Officer, to present the report. 

 
 

6.   DRAFT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR DEVELOPING A NEW 
REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN FOR NORTH WALES 
 

12 - 35 

 Alwen Williams, Interim CJC Chief Executive, to present the report. 

 
 

 
 



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 27/10/23 

 

 
NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 

27/10/23 
 

 
 

Present:  Chair: Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn (Cyngor Gwynedd)  
 
Councillors: Jason McLellan (Denbighshire Council), Gary Pritchard (Isle of Anglesey County 
Council), Ian B Roberts (Flintshire Council), Charlie McCoubrey (Conwy County Borough Council) 
and Annwen Hughes (Snowdonia National Park Authority).  
 
Chief Officers: Geraint Owen (Cyngor Gwynedd), Dylan Williams (Isle of Anglesey County 
Council), Rhun ap Gareth (Conwy County Borough Council), Andrew Farrow (Flintshire Council), 
Ian Bancroft (Wrexham County Borough Council), Graham Boase (Denbighshire Council) and 
Iwan Jones (Snowdonia National Park Authority)  
 
Statutory Officers 
Iwan G Evans (Monitoring Officer) and Dewi Morgan (Section 151 Officer).  
 
Other officers present 
Alwen Williams (Interim Chief Executive of the CJC), Sian Pugh (Assistant Head of Finance) and 
Eirian Roberts (Democracy Service Officer). 
 
1. CHAIR 

 
RESOLVED to elect Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn as Chair for 2023/24. 
 

2. VICE-CHAIR 
 

RESOLVED to elect Councillor Mark Pritchard as Vice-chair for 2023/2024. 
 
3. APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from the following:- 
 

• Councillor Llinos Medi Huws (Isle of Anglesey County Council) with Councillor Gary 
Pritchard deputising; 

• Councillor Mark Pritchard (Wrexham County Borough Council); 

• Dafydd Gibbard (Cyngor Gwynedd) with Geraint Owen deputising; 

• Neal Cockerton (Flintshire County Council) with Andrew Farrow deputising; 

• Emyr Williams (Snowdonia National Park Authority) with Iwan Jones deputising. 
 
4. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
Alwen Williams, CJC Interim Chief Executive, declared a personal interest in item 8 as the 
report involved extending the period of her secondment to that role. She was of the opinion 
that it was a prejudicial interest, and withdraw from the meeting during the discussion. 
 

5. URGENT ITEMS 
 
None to note. 

 
6. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 27/10/23 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 26 May 2023, as a true 
record.  

 
7. NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE PROJECTED EXPENDITURE 2023-

24 
 
The report was presented by Sian Pugh, Assistant Head of Finance. 
 
RESOLVED to note and accept the Corporate Joint Committee's projected 
expenditure for 2023/24 as submitted in Appendix 1 to the report that was presented 
to the Joint Committee. 

 
8. EXTENDING THE SECONDMENT TO THE ROLE OF INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF 

THE CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
The report was submitted by Geraint Owen, Cyngor Gwynedd.  
 
Further to the content of the report, it was noted that the NWEAB had agreed at its meeting 
earlier that day to release Alwen Williams from her role for the period in question. 
 
RESOLVED to extend the appointment of Alwen Williams as the North Wales 
Corporate Joint Committee's Interim Chief Executive, on a temporary secondment 
basis, until the end of March 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
It was asked whether the secondment meant that there was underspend on Alwen Williams' 
salary as Portfolio Director for the NWEAB. In response, it was explained that the amount 
transferred to the NWEAB for releasing Alwen Williams on a part-time basis created an 
underspend, but that this money was being used for another officer in the Portfolio Officer 
who was deputising for Alwen Williams for the two days that she worked for the Corporate 
Joint Committee. 
 
The Leader of Flintshire Council expressed his concern that it appeared, therefore, that 
there was back-filling of the role in the NWEAB whilst the work of the Corporate Joint 
Committee was being fulfilled, and he added that he had no recollection of this ever being 
discussed in the NWEAB. In response, it was explained that part of the arrangement when 
the secondment was approved originally, was to give assurance to the NWEAB that there 
would be stepping up in terms of the role of the Portfolio Director in order to support the 
Growth Deal, and that this had been reported to the NWEAB at the time. 
 
It was noted that the report referred to the fact that another item on the meeting agenda 
elaborated on the additional resource identified to support the Interim Chief Executive with 
the work of establishing the Corporate Joint Committee finally by 1 April 2024, but that no 
reference to this could be seen in the papers. In response, it was suggested that this was a 
question to ask the Interim Chief Executive after she returned to the meeting for the next 
item as it was she who had put this arrangement in place. 
 
Following the vote on the item, the Leader of Flintshire Council noted that he wished to 
record that he had voted against the secondment as he had no recollection of a report 
being submitted to the NWEAB regarding who would be filling in for the Portfolio Director. 
 
The Chair noted that the question could be put to the Interim Chief Executive after she 
returned to the meeting, and he asked the member whether he wished to continue to note 
his objection. 

Page 5



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 27/10/23 

 
The Leader of Flintshire Council noted that he wished for his concern to be noted and that 
he was asking for a report to the NWEAB and to the Corporate Joint Committee explaining 
who was filling in in the NWEAB for the two days when the Portfolio Director was not 
available, and how and when that appointment/those appointments had been made. 
 
Alwen Williams was called back to the meeting, and was asked to explain the situation. In 
response, she noted that, as both Governments wished to have confirmation that the 
secondment to the Corporate Joint Committee would not affect the ability or resources to 
deliver against the Growth Deal, arrangements had been put in place for the two days to be 
filled by resources from within the existing Portfolio Office team. 
 
The Chair asked whether there was any additional expenditure as a result. The Assistant 
Head of Finance noted that she did not have the exact figure, but that the information could 
be relayed to the members. 
 
The Chair noted that there was a request for clarity, clearly, but that this was a matter for 
the NWEAB, rather than the Corporate Joint Committee, and he suggested that at the next 
meeting of the NWEAB reference could be made to the decision made to fill in and to 
provide additional support to the Portfolio Office. 
 
The Interim Chief Executive further noted:- 
 

• When discussions commenced with both Governments regarding the arrangements 
to establish the Corporate Joint Committee and making the request to allocate some 
of her time to the CJC, Welsh Government had been quite positive, but wanted 
assurance that this would not have a negative impact on the Growth Deal as a 
priority. 

• That UK Government also wanted to make quite sure that there would be no 
negative impact on our ability or on the resources to reach the objectives of the 
Growth Deal. 

• That it was not as simple as moving resources from one place to another and that 
there had been fairly lengthy discussions at the beginning to build on the 
relationship and give assurance that we would be able to move ahead to establish 
the Corporate Joint Committee and continue to reach the requirements of the 
Governments in relation to the Growth Deal. 

 
The Leader of Flintshire reiterated his concerns and expressed that he was extremely 
disappointed at what appeared to him as a lack of transparency from the Host Authority.  
 
The Chair confirmed that a detailed report would be submitted to the next NWEAB in order 
to have full clarity. 

 
9. NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE BRANDING 

 
The report was submitted by Alwen Williams, Interim CJC Chief Executive. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the proposed branding for the Corporate Joint Committee. 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 15:30 and concluded at 16:00. 

 
 

________________________________ 
(Chair)  

 

Page 6



  
  
  

MEETING:  North Wales Corporate Joint Committee    
 
DATE:  24 November 2023   
 
SUBJECT: Standards Sub-Committee - Appointment of Members  
 
AUTHOR:  Iwan G D Evans – Monitoring Officer  
  
   
 ___________________________________________________________________ 

 
 DECISION SOUGHT:   
 
1. Adopt the modifications to the Standards Sub-Committee Terms of 

Reference Appendix 1. 
  
1. Adopt the criteria for appointing independent members to the Standards 

Sub - Committee and establish an Interview Panel in accordance with 
Appendix 2 

  
3. Delegate arranging the appointment process to the Monitoring Officer.  
  
 ___________________________________________________________________ 

  
1. REASON FOR THE DECISION 
 

Legislative changes mean the arrangements for establishing a Standards Sub 
Committee adopted in May of this year need to be reviewed. 

 
2.BACKGROUND 
 

Modifications to the Standards Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 have come 
into force which place statutory requirements on the establishment of the CBC 
Standards Committees. Although most of the Terms of Reference remain relevant 
there are some changes which were not envisaged and deviate from the guidance  
contained in the Statutory Guidance namely: 

  
1. "using the existing standards committee of one of its constituent councils 
2. set up its own standards sub-committee, which could be populated according to 

principles Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 2001 but by members of 
constituent council standards committees 

3. establishing a standards sub-committee in accordance with the Standards Committee 
(Wales) Regulations 2001” 

  

According to the regulations published in October this year require independent 
seats to be filled through an advertising and interview process in the same way as 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



the Councils and Park Authority Standards Committees. An interview panel also 
needs to be appointed as well as criteria for appointment. 
 
The modifications required to be included in the Terms of Reference are set out 
in Appendix 1 and the proposed appointment arrangements are in Appendix 2. I 
will be working with the region's Monitoring Officers to facilitate the process. 

  
  
Monitoring Officer  

  
Report author   

  
Finance Officer  

   
“ I have no objections from the perspective of financial propriety.” 

 
Appendices:   

   
1. Standards Sub-Committee Terms of Reference   
2. Appointments Process 

  
 

Page 8



Appendix 1  
STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE   

  
 
Composition  
 

Membership of the Standards Committee.  

 

The standards committee is composed of 7 Members appointed by the CJC who shall be 
independent members appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Standards 
Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 as amended.  
  
The following persons are not eligible to serve as Independent (Lay) Members of the standards 
committee:  
  
(a) A person who is a member or an officer of a corporate joint committee or a member or 

officer of a constituent authority or constituent National Park Authority of that corporate joint 

committee,  

 

(b) A person who has been, but is no longer a member or an officer of a corporate joint 

committee or a member or officer of a constituent authority or constituent National Park 

Authority of that corporate joint committee,  

 

(c)Subject to (a) and (b) above for a period of 12 months commencing on the date  on 

which that person ceased to be a member or officer of a Relevant Authority a person who 

has been but is no longer a member or officer of it 

  
Term of Office  
 

Independent (Lay) Members are appointed for a period of not less than four and not more than 
six years and may be reappointed for one consecutive term not exceeding four years.  
 
Meetings  
 

The standards committee must meet at least once annually.  
 
Quorum of Standards Committee  
A meeting of the standards committee shall only be quorate when at least 5  Members, 
including the chairperson or in their absence the vice chair, are present.  
  
Voting  
 
All Members  will be entitled to vote at meetings.  
 
A question to be decided by the standards committee shall be decided by a majority of the 
votes cast by those members present at the meeting and eligible to vote.  
 
In the case of an equality of votes, the person presiding at a meeting of the standards 
committee shall have a second, casting vote.  
  
Chairing the committee.  
 

Only an Independent (Lay) Member of the standards committee may be the chairperson or 
vice-chairperson  
 

If the chairperson is absent from a meeting of the standards committee, then the vice-
chairperson of the committee, if present, shall preside.  

Page 9



 
If both the chairperson and the vice-chairperson of the standards committee are absent from 
a meeting, an independent member as chosen by the standards committee shall preside. 
 
The chairperson and vice-chairperson will be elected by the Members of the standards 
committee for whichever is the shortest period of:  
  

a. not less than four years or no more than six years; or  
b. until the term of office of the Independent Member comes to an end.  
  

A chairperson or vice-chairperson can be re-elected following their re-appointment as a 
member of the committee as the case may be.  
 

Role and Function  
The standards committee will have the following roles and functions:  
 

a. promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Members;   
b. assisting Members to observe the Members’ Code of Conduct;  
c. advising the CJC on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code  

of   Conduct;  
d. monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct;  
e. advising on training or arranging to train Members on matters relating 
 to the Members’ Code of Conduct;  
f. granting dispensations to Members from requirements relating to  
 interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct;  
g. dealing with any reports from a case tribunal or interim case tribunal, 
 and any report from the Monitoring Officer on any matter referred to 
 that officer by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.  
h. overseeing the CJC's whistle-blowing regime;  
i. providing advice to individual Members on such issues as the  
 treatment of personal interest and on conduct matters generally.  
j. determining appropriate action on matters referred to it by the Public 
 Services Ombudsman for Wales.  
k. overseeing the Register of Interest of Members and Officers.  
l. overseeing the CJC's rules and protocols on accountability of  
 members.  
m. overseeing the attendance of Members at relevant meetings.  

  
As soon as reasonably practicable after the end of each financial year, the standards 
committee will make an annual report to the CJC setting out the following:  
  

a. how the committee's functions have been discharged  

b. what has been done to discharge the general and specific functions;  

c. reports and recommendations made or referred to the committee by 
      the Ombudsman;  

d. action taken by the committee following its consideration of such  
 reports and recommendations;  

e. notices given to the committee by the Adjudication Panel for Wales.  

f. such other matters as the committee may wish to draw to the attention 
         of CJC in relation to the standards committee's functions.  

  

  
 

Page 10



APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS 

TO THE STANDARDS SUB- COMMITTEE OF THE NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 

Independent Member – Characteristics  

The work of the Committee will mean that the independent members will need the following 

characteristics and skills: - 

• Listening skills. 

• Ability to understand and weigh up evidence. 

• Ability to come to an objective view and explain that view by reference to the evidence. 

• Teamworking skills. 

• Respect for others and an understanding of diversity issues. 

• Discretion. 

• Personal integrity. 

 

A detailed knowledge of local government is not necessary although it would be an advantage if 
potential candidates were interested in matters relating to public life and services. In addition, 
independent members must: - 

 

• Be eligible for appointment as an independent member  

• Be well respected in the community. 

• Be able to meet the time commitment involved and be available at short notice. 

• Be able to provide two references. 

 

Achievement of a balance of  qualities and skill on the Sub-Committee, as well as the need to 

represent the region and its communities as a whole and achieve geographical representation will 

be taken into account. 

Appointment Process 

The Advisory Panel will interview all candidates.  Panel membership will include: 

Chairman of the Corporate Joint Committee 

Vice Chairman of the Corporate  Joint Committee 

"Lay Member" - (defined in the Standards Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 as 

amended) 

The Panel  will be advised by the CBC Monitoring Officer 

It will then present its recommendations to a meeting of the Corporate Joint Committee which will 

make the appointments. 

Page 11



 

 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 

24 November, 2023  

 
TITLE: Draft Implementation Plan for developing a new Regional Transport Plan for North Wales 

AUTHOR: Alwen Williams, Interim CJC Chief Executive 

  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1. The purpose of the report is to present a proposed draft Implementation Plan for developing 

a new Regional Transport Plan for North Wales. 

 

2. DECISION SOUGHT 

 

2.1. To approve the proposed draft Implementation Plan for submission to Welsh Government. 

 

3. REASON FOR THE DECISION 

 

3.1. The CJC has a duty to produce the Regional Transport Plan, Regional Transport Delivery Plan 

and Integrated Wellbeing Impact Assessment for North Wales by the end of March 2025, in 

accordance with the RTP guidance for CJCs by Welsh Government. The implementation plan 

sets out the plan to achieve this.  

 

4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS  

 

4.1. The Welsh Government have noted the availability of up to £125,000 to support development 

of the Regional Transport Plan. This funding will be awarded on the basis of a satisfactory RTP 

Implementation Plan that has the backing and endorsement of the CJC and sets out how the 

RTP milestones will be achieved. 

 

4.2. A number of working assumptions are included within the implementation plan, especially with 

regards to budget and resources. These assumptions will be tested as the work progresses 

and the CJC and key stakeholders including Welsh Government will be kept informed as the 

work progresses.  

 

4.3. The implementation plan notes the intent to seek opportunities to work cross border with Mid-

Wales on certain elements of work that may be cost efficient and sensible to commission 

together.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

4.4. The North Wales Transport Commission’s final report, due at the end of November, should 

offer useful data and insights that will support the development of the case for change by the 

end of March 2024.  

 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

5.1. The RTP Implementation Plan has the opportunity to leverage up to £125,000 in grant funding 

by Welsh Government to support its development.  

 

5.2 Full costs for delivery of the RTP are estimated at £270,000 which will be met by the grant 

funding and the remainder from the annual budget. The costs are based on current working 

assumptions.  

 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

6.1. No legal implications.  

 

 

 

 
APPENDICES: 

 

Appendix 1 Draft Implementation Plan 

 
 

 

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 

 

i. Monitoring Officer: 
 
“As the report explains this is a procedural requirement from Welsh Government. I 
have no observations to add in relation to propriety.” 
 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer: 
 
“I am satisfied that the cost estimates that have been included in the report are 
reasonable and I support the decision sought.” 

 

 

Page 13



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

 
  

Page 14



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Contents 
 
1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................ 3 

1.2 BACKGROUND ......................................................................................................................... 3 

1.3 NORTH WALES CONTEXT ......................................................................................................... 5 

1.3.1 NORTH WALES TRANSPORT COMMISSION ..................................................................... 6 

1.3.2 NORTH AND MID WALES TRUNK ROAD AGENCY ............................................................ 6 

1.3.3 SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AND CONSIDERATIONS................................................... 7 

2 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN ................................................................................................................. 9 

2.1. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: GOAL .............................................................................................. 9 

2.2. POLICY CONTEXT ..................................................................................................................... 9 

2.3. MILESTONES – HIGH LEVEL OVERVIEW ................................................................................. 10 

2.4. HIGH-LEVEL RISKS ................................................................................................................. 11 

3 RESOURCES ................................................................................................................................... 11 

3.1 CURRENT RESOURCES ........................................................................................................... 11 

3.2 RESOURCES REQUIRED, COSTS AND ASSUMPTIONS ............................................................ 12 

4 GOVERNANCE ............................................................................................................................... 13 

5 APPENDICIES ................................................................................................................................. 14 

 

 

  

Page 15



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This implementafion plan defines the tasks, resources and budget required to develop and deliver the 

Regional Transport Plan (RTP) for North Wales. It sets out how the RTP will be developed and adopted 

by the North Wales Corporate Joint Commiftee (CJC.) The RTP should also contain a strategic-level 

delivery plan demonstrafing how the Local Authorifies will deliver the RTPs. 

Funding requirements for development of the Regional Transport Plan (RTP) in 2023-24 assumes that 

any grant funding awarded by Welsh Government but unspent by the CJC will be carried forward to 

2024-25. All costs will need to be reviewed in line with more detailed resourcing plans.  

It is anficipated that work undertaken by the North Wales Transport Commission will contribute greatly 

to the North Wales RTP. The commission’s interim report from June 2023 provides good context, 

however it is logical and sensible for development of the RTP to be done in-line with considerafion of 

conclusions reached in the final report.  

The draft implementafion plan will evolve as necessary to take account of more certainty on cost, 

budget, and resource and with the establishment and involvement of the regional transport officers 

group and transport sub-commiftee. 

1.2 BACKGROUND 

The Local Government and Elecfions (Wales) Act 2021 provides for CJCs as a mechanism for regional 

collaborafion through a consistent and democrafically controlled framework. Holding similar dufies, 

governance, and administrafive structures to principal councils, CJCs are required to comply with all 

public body dufies and are assigned statutory responsibility for the preparafion of Strategic 

Development Plans and Regional Transport Plans. CJCs also have the power to do anything to enhance 

or promote the economic wellbeing of its area.  

The Corporate Joint Commiftees (Transport Funcfions) (Wales) Regulafions 2021 and the Welsh 

Government’s Guidance to Corporate Joint Commiftees on Regional Transport Plans1 sets out how CJCs 

must prepare RTPs, explaining the relevant funcfions and provisions. The CJCs must develop policies for 

the implementafion of the Llwybr Newydd: the Wales Transport Strategy 20212 (WTS) in their area and 

 
1 Guidance to CJCs on Regional Transport Plans - guidance-to-corporate-joint-commiftees-on-regional-
transport-plans-2023.docx (live.com) 
2 Llwybr Newydd: the Wales transport strategy 2021 - Llwybr Newydd: the Wales transport strategy 2021 | 
GOV.WALES 

Page 16

https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2023-07%2Fguidance-to-corporate-joint-committees-on-regional-transport-plans-2023.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fpublications%2F2023-07%2Fguidance-to-corporate-joint-committees-on-regional-transport-plans-2023.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021


 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

in doing so, must develop policies for the promofion of accessible, sustainable, and efficient transport 

facilifies in line with the WTS’s vision and priorifies.  

Key points from the RTP guidance include the following.  

RTP’s should: 

Consist of two elements 

 The RTP itself which sets out policies for transport in North Wales and the Regional Transport 

Delivery Plan (RTDP) which outlines specifically how those policies will be delivered by local 

authorifies.  

 An Integrated Well-being Appraisal (IWBA) for the RTP 

Be founded upon a clearly arficulated, evidence based ‘Case for Change’. 

North Wales Local Authorifies should work together to develop the case for change, which presents 

the rafionale for the RTP. This outlines the current situafion, the problems and challenges that need 

to be addressed and why delivery of the RTP and RTDP is essenfial for the environment of North 

Wales, its residents and future generafions, businesses, visitors, and wider economy. The case for 

change should set a clear vision, draw on exisfing informafion and previous transport policies and 

plans. It should set clear objecfive that arficulate specific, measurable, achievable, realisfic and 

fimebound results.  

Focus on engaging with, influencing and equipping people to adopt a modal shift. 

The RTP should include policies and acfions to make best use of exisfing transport infrastructure by 

maintaining and managing it well, adapfing it to a changing climate and upgrading it to support the 

increased use of acfive travel (walking and cycling), public transport, ultra-low emissions vehicles as 

viable, convenient, reliable, and affordable alternafives to combusfion engine private cars.  

Be clear, concise, relevant, owned and led by the region. 

The RTP should consider should be based on acfions and decisions that can stand the test of fime. 

It should evidence a clear pathway that demonstrates the ability to balance short-term fixes to 

transport challenges with choices that tackle and respond to more complex and messy issues such 

as climate change and next-zero. Transport is a key element in place-making, so it’s important that 

CJCs develop the RTP and RTDP alongside the Regional Strategic Development plans and integrafing 

land-based planning decisions with development of transport systems that supports the 

behavioural change and making modal shift an easy decision for people in the region.  

Page 17



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

1.3 NORTH WALES CONTEXT 

The RTP will be reflecfive of the aims, priorifies, and strategies for transport in the area covered by the 

following local authorifies of Isle of Anglesey, Gwynedd, Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire, and Wrexham:  

The North and Mid Wales CJCs should work together to consider transport routes across Local Authority 

boundaries between Gwynedd, Denbighshire, Wrexham, Ceredigion, and Powys. In the same way, 

Wrexham and Flintshire share boundaries with Cheshire West and Chester, and Shropshire. Therefore 

the CJC and RTP should consider and reflect this inter-connecfion in their engagement and delivery 

plans to facilitate effecfive and efficient service provision, such as road maintenance and public 

transport, in a way that ensures policy consistency, priorifisafion, and value for money. 

This area, which is shown in Figure 1, also includes the area (solid green) managed by the Eryri Nafional 

Park Authority (ENPA). This is included because when CJCs are exercising the funcfion of preparing 

Strategic Development Plans, the relevant Nafional Park Authority (NPA) is also a member of the CJC. 

When doing anything that impacts on a NPA area, CJCs will need to consider how they can further 

support the purposes of NPA to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife, and cultural heritage 

of the Nafional Parks; and promote opportunifies for the understanding and enjoyment of the special 

qualifies of the park by the public. 

 
Figure 1 – Area Considered in the North Wales Regional Transport Plan (ENPA Area in Green). 

Page 18



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

1.3.1 NORTH WALES TRANSPORT COMMISSION 

The North Wales Transport Commission, led by Lord Terry Burns, was announced, and established by 

Welsh Government in March 2022 to advise on and recommend solufions for a sustainable and 

integrated transport system in north Wales. 

The North Wales Transport Commission's remit was to take a mulfi-modal approach to assess 

transportafion in the North Wales region. This included analysing road journeys, both passenger and 

freight, focusing on where journeys begin and end, and variafions by fime of day and season. 

Addifionally, it evaluates the use of public transport and acfive travel within the region, even for journeys 

starfing or ending outside North Wales. The study idenfifies areas where the absence of public 

transport, car ownership, or safe acfive travel opfions presents significant challenges for communifies. 

Addifionally, it examines exisfing inifiafives like the North Wales Metro and other relevant acfivifies 

aimed at encouraging modal-shift and sustainable transport opfions across both urban and rural areas 

of North Wales. The Commission’s remit was extended in February 2023 to idenfify opfions for 

improving connecfivity across the Menai Strait. 

The Commission’s interim report3 presented in June 2023 sets out their draft recommendafions aligned 

to two broad areas: 

 A Befter Network – Primary Changes and Improvements - the work needed to develop and 

deliver a sustainable travel network for north Wales, with a focus on public transport and acfive 

travel to provide a genuine alternafive to the private car. 

 Enablers – Supporfing Measures - intervenfions, inifiafives, and ways of working that can enable 

more sustainable travel choices for businesses and individuals.  

Their final conclusions and recommendafions are due imminently in Autumn 2023 and will provide a 

basis, supported by evidence and stakeholder engagement upon which the RTP and RTDP can be 

formed.  

1.3.2 NORTH AND MID WALES TRUNK ROAD AGENCY 

Considerafion should be given to the responsibilifies of the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agent 

(NMWTRA) and their engagement and input sought in development of the RTP. NMWTRA is 

responsible for managing, maintaining, and improving the strategic road network in North and Mid 

Wales on behalf of the Welsh Government. It is a partnership comprising the eight North and Mid 

Wales local authorifies and responsible for managing around 700 miles of road, 2,000 structures and 3 

 
3 North Wales Transport Commission – Interim Report June 2023 - North Wales Transport Commission Interim 
Report (gov.wales) 

Page 19

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-06/north-wales-transport-commission-interim-report-june-2023.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-06/north-wales-transport-commission-interim-report-june-2023.pdf


 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

tunnels. Cyngor Gwynedd acts as lead authority for the partnership and whilst part of the partnership 

the Isle of Anglesey County Council do not provide trunk road services. 

NMWTRA’s main responsibilifies are: 

 Network management - day-to-day monitoring and the availability of the road network. 

 Asset management - Assets include highways, bridges and structures including tunnels, 

electrical assets such as street lighfing, pedestrian crossings, lighfing units, vehicle acfivated 

signs, intelligent transport systems, traffic signals, safety barriers, signs, soft estate (including 

highway verges and planted landscape areas) 

 Capital maintenance – schemes designed to improve a part of the trunk road network and 

enhance its value over an extended period (as opposed to maintenance of the exisfing asset). 

 Roufine maintenance - ensuring that the roads are kept to standards for the safe use of 

everyone.  

 Business management - essenfial business management support for the Wales Trunk Roads 

Authority is undertaken by Cyngor Gwynedd under condifions of delegafion by Welsh 

Government.  

1.3.3 SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 

Ambifion North Wales and the North Wales Growth Deal 

Ambifion North Wales is a strong partnership, comprising the six local authorifies, two universifies and 

two colleges, working on behalf of North Wales, with Welsh and UK Governments, to deliver against a 

future vision for economic prosperity. The Porffolio Management Office has been established to 

deliver the Growth Deal, and support the regional ambifions for a stronger, more resilient, and 

sustainable future economy. With £240m of capital (£120m each) commifted by both Governments 

over the next 10-15years the Growth Deal is seeking to deliver a total investment of up to £1.1bn in 

the North Wales economy, create 3,400 – 4,200 net addifional jobs and generate £2.0- £2.4 billion in 

net addifional GVA. It is crifical that new employment sites are well linked by public transport and 

accessible in order to encourage, enable and promote the modal-shift away from the private car.  

The North Wales Regional Economic Framework (REF) 

This co-produced by Welsh Government and Ambifion North Wales has a key role in ensuring that 

acfivifies, at all levels, align to focus our resources where they can have greatest impact for our 

communifies. The REF, through its priorifies, sets out an approach to ulfimately create the condifions 

for our economy to prosper for the long term. Read the REF document here 

Anglesey Freeport 

Page 20

https://ambitionnorth.wales/ambition-north-wales/
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-02/north-wales-regional-economic-framework.pdf


 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

The Anglesey Freeport is a designated economic zone in North Wales, offering tax reliefs, simplified 

customs procedures, and UK and Welsh government support to sfimulate business growth, trade, and 

investment. Transport networks across North Wales serve as vital arteries that facilitate seamless 

trade and economic acfivity, which will make them crifical for the Freeport’s success. The strategic 

locafion of Anglesey, coupled with its robust transport infrastructure, including the UK's second-

largest roll-on/roll-off port in Holyhead, enables efficient trade flow across the Holyhead-Dublin 

corridor and across the GB land-bridge to and from mainland Europe. This not only enhances UK-EU 

trade relafions but also plays a crifical role in developing new internafional trade agreements. The 

exisfing road and rail connecfions, notably the direct access to the A55 and rail links to London, will 

ensure carbon-efficient transport of goods to and from the Freeport. These networks are integral to 

the Freeport's operafional efficiency, its potenfial to aftract investment and sfimulate economic 

prosperity, not just for Anglesey but for the enfire North Wales region. 

New Nuclear Developments 

The history of nuclear power in North Wales centres around two key sites: Trawsfynydd in Gwynedd 

and Wylfa on the Isle of Anglesey. Both sites are strategically important within the local economy and 

feature as a priority for building a resilient low carbon economy for the future. Both sites are 

significant employers, each sustaining hundreds of local families throughout their operafion and now 

through decommissioning. Future new nuclear development opportunifies should be factored in as a 

considerafion for effecfive, efficient and low carbon transport planning.  

North East Wales Nafional Park Designafion 

The Welsh Government has commissioned Natural Resources Wales (NRW) to evaluate the case for a 

new Nafional Park in north East Wales based on the exisfing Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

NRW has established a team to lead this work which will include data and evidence gathering, and 

engagement with local communifies and other key stakeholders. 

The case will be considered within the exisfing Senedd term (2021-2026) – more informafion about 

the fimeline can be found here - North East Wales Nafional Park Designafion Project Informafion Page. 

Depending on polifical decisions taken, this is a development that should be considered in terms of 

the regional transport plan. 

Potenfial North Wales Investment Zone 

On the 7th November, Minister for Economy Vaughan Gething MS made a statement on investment 

zones and confirmed that the Welsh Government Cabinet has met to discuss the investment zone 

Page 21

https://ymgynghori.cyfoethnaturiol.cymru/north-east-gogledd-ddwyrain/north-east-wales-national-park-designation-project/


 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

proposals that have been in development and wriften to the Secretary of State at the Department for 

Levelling Up, Housing and Communifies to indicate the Welsh Government’s willingness to use 

devolved levers and experfise to support two investment zones in Wales, with a preference for one of 

those to target North East Wales.  

The statement emphasises the importance of the collaborafive regional approach developed across 

Wales and the need to simplify regional economic development planning and governance through the 

Corporate Joint Commiftee structures.  

2 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

2.1. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: GOAL 

This Implementafion Plan sets out how the RTP for North Wales will be developed. The goal of this piece 

of work is, therefore, to: 

Develop a Regional Transport Plan for North Wales which sets out how an accessible, sustainable, 

affordable, and integrated transport systems can be achieved. It should support the economy to 

thrive, encourage modal shift away from private car use, and reduce the negafive environmental 

impact of our transport network.   

The final version of the RTP including the RTDP and IWBA will be submifted to Welsh Government by 

29th March 2025. Further milestones and fimelines outlined in 2.3 (Table 1) with work package 

breakdown in Appendix 1.  

2.2. POLICY CONTEXT 

It is imperafive that the RTP is reflecfive of Nafional, Regional, Local strategies and priorifies, as shown 

in Figure 2.  

The policy context should also consider the needs of wider public sector organisafions who provide 

essenfial and crifical services to cifizens such as Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Welsh 

Ambulance Services Trust, North Wales Police, North Wales Fire and Rescue Service.    

Page 22



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

 

Figure 2: Policy Context for Regional Transport Plan  

2.3. MILESTONES – HIGH LEVEL OVERVIEW 

Development of the RTP is in accordance with high level milestones as set out in Table 1. Detailed 

breakdown of work packages in Appendix 1 

Table 1: High level milestones and fimeline 

 RTP Guidance Acfion Comments North Wales date 

1 31 Oct ‘23 
Submit Implementafion Plan to 
Welsh Government 

Draft submifted 31 Oct ‘23 

2 29 Feb ‘24 
Develop and submit Case for 
Change, and SMART objecfives 
to Welsh Government 

Very fight fimescales – 
capacity concerns being raised 

31 Mar ‘24 

3 29 May ‘24 
Submit inifial draft RTP, RTDP 
and IWBA* to Welsh Gov for 
review 

Timescale concerns, but 
hopeful that Transport 
Commission’s report will 
provide insights, data and 
recommendafions that can be 
supported 

29 May ‘24 

4 Summer 2024 
Publish revised RTP and IWBA 
for public consultafion 

To be reviewed as part of the 
Programme Management 
process with Welsh Gov 

Summer 2024 

5 31 October ‘24 
Submit the final draft RTP, IWBA 
and consultafion report to 
Welsh Government for approval 
by the Welsh Ministers 

To be reviewed as part of the 
Programme Management 
process with Welsh Gov 

31 October ‘24 

Page 23



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

6 29 March ‘25 
Submit final RTP, IWBA and 
RTDP to Welsh Government 

To be reviewed as part of the 
Programme Management 
process with Welsh Gov 

29 March ‘25 

7 30 June ‘25 
Welsh Government Decision on 
approval of RTP 

 30 June ‘25 

7 Summer 2025 
Publish the approved RTP and 
IWBA 

  

 In addifion to the above, the CJC must develop the following:  

Monitoring and Evaluafion Plan - showing how regional progress in achieving the nafional priorifies 

and ambifions in the WTS will be monitored, measured, and evaluated. This must include the region’s 

contribufion to nafional decarbonisafion and modal shift targets. 

 
*the Integrated Well-being Appraisal should consider social, environmental, economic, place based 

and cultural well-being. It will comprise assessment and considerafions relevant to transport services 

including equalifies, Welsh language, environmental, habitats regulafion impact assessments and 

impact on Net-zero ambifions.   

 

2.4. HIGH-LEVEL RISKS 

At this early stage, the high-level risks associated with delivering a Regional Transport Plan for North 

Wales are considered to be:  

 Polifical agreement on polices and high-level outcomes. 

- To be mifigated through engagement and discussion throughout the process 

 Regional agreement on priorifised RTDP schemes list 

- To be mifigated through the development of a robust and imparfial scoring methodology 

 Challenging fimescales for submission and adopfion of the RTP 

- To be mifigated with secondment of full-fime Programme Manager for CJC implementafion. 

Start date to be agreed. 

 Insufficient staff capacity and / or experfise within Local Authorifies 

 Impact of a General Elecfion and pre-elecfion period fimings on Stakeholder and consultafion 

events. 

 

3 RESOURCES 

3.1 CURRENT RESOURCES 

Currently the North Wales CJC has the following resources: 

Statutory officers: 

Page 24



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

- Part fime interim Chief Execufive Officer (x 2 days per week) plus admin support (x1 day per 

week) 

- Part-fime 151 Officer (Cyngor Gwynedd) 

- Part-fime Monitoring Officer (Cyngor Gwynedd)  

Legal and finance charge fime to the CJCs budget as required to complete statutory work in support of 

the CJC.   

Addifional officer support:  

- It has been agreed that Cyngor Gwynedd as supplying authority provide support from HR and 

support to conduct Welsh Language impact assessments and provide translafion services 

(meefing and wriften) as required from Cyngor Gwynedd. 

 

3.2 RESOURCES REQUIRED, COSTS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The CJC have agreed an interim staffing structure which allows for the recruitment of a Statutory 

Funcfions Manager and Senior Transport Officer to support the work of developing a Regional 

Transport Plan, Regional Transport Delivery Plan and Integrated Wellbeing Assessment.  

As the CJC is not currently operafional in respect of directly employing staff, a Programme Manager 

will be recruited on a secondment basis in the interim period. (Anficipated 12 months). A senior 

transport officer to be recruited (possible inifial secondment unfil the CJC is employing staff directly).  

Funding to deliver the RTP is c.£270,000.  

2023-24 - c.£95,000  

2024-25 - c.£.175,000   

The budget forecast is based on the work packages to be delivered and the associated fimescales to 

achieve a final RTP by June 2025. The forecast is also based on the CJCs budget outline forecast for 

Transport in 2023/24.  

Cost/Budget Assumptions 

The following assumptions have been made on resource costs. 

 Welsh Government are making available a grant of up to £125,000 for CJCs to support the 

development of Regional Transport Plans 

 Any Welsh Government grant awarded in 2023/24 can be used for the cost of resources 

idenfified in 3.2.  

 Any Welsh Government Grant not ufilised in 2023/24 will be carried forward to 2024/25 

 

Page 25



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

4 GOVERNANCE 

 
The RTP is the first task to be undertaken by the North Wales CJC. Assuming the boards acceptance of 

the draft implementafion plan, work to set up and establish the Transport Sub-Commiftee and 

Transport Officers Group can commence with a focus on delivering the agreed work packages and the 

RTP in accordance with the  CJCs dufies. 

Page 26



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

5 APPENDICIES  

Appendix 1: SCOPING THE KEY WORK PACKAGES 
 

Table 1: Draft work-packages required to develop the North Wales RTP.  

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

Developing the Case for Change 

Member and 
key 
stakeholder 
engagement 

Seek the views of porffolio holders and/or other Members, and 
key stakeholders about the issues to be captured in the case for 
change and the policies / schemes needed to address them. 
 
Agree approach to engaging members and key stakeholders. A 
consistent approach should be ufilised to engage members 
across all six authorifies.   

Agreement between 
all authorifies 
needed. 

Tight fimescales suggest this stage is necessary 
very early in the process.  
  
Autumn 2023 

Define the 
Area of Study 

Descripfion of North Wales, and map locafion etc. Relafionship 
with cross-border authorifies e.g. Liverpool City Region, 
Chester and Cheshire West, Wirral, Shropshire - one of 
Flintshire's main hospitals is the Countess of Chester and 
therefore access to health is over the border. Chester Stafion - 
key hub for Flintshire. Cross border relafionships and 
connecfions with Powys and Ceredigion also to be considered.  
 

Responsible 
Officer/Author (TBC) 

Complete for officer review mid-December 2023 
 
Approval by Strategic Transport Sub-Commiftee 
and CJC Meefing 26th Jan 2024 
(Browse meefings - North Wales Corporate Joint 
Commiftee (llyw.cymru)) 
 
 
Welsh Government submission 29th February 2024 
– North Wales aim for 31 March 2024 
 

Set out the 
Strategic Case 

Set out the local impact of the following on the RTP and future 
transport:  
- Llywbr Newydd: the Wales transport strategy 2021 
- Local Authority well-being assessments and well-being 

plans 
- Regional Economic Frameworks  
- Net Zero Wales 
- A Healthier Wales 
- Clean Air Plan for Wales: Healthy Air, Healthy Wales 
- Noise and Soundscape Acfion Plan 

Responsible 
Officer/Author (TBC) 

P
age 27

https://democracy.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/ieListMeetings.aspx?Act=later&CId=433&D=202311241400&MD=ielistmeetings
https://democracy.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/ieListMeetings.aspx?Act=later&CId=433&D=202311241400&MD=ielistmeetings


 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

- Local Authority Transport Plans and Council Plans 
- North Wales Transport Commission 
- North Wales Mero Programme Case 
- Previous LTP 

Review of 
Evidence and 
Idenfify Issues 
and 
Opportunifies 

GIS mapping 
NW Transport Model findings 
Consider: 
- Rurality and access to services 
- Car dependency 
- Bus – improvements such as Sherpa and Fflecsi, Traws, 

opportunifies from franchising and future plans and 
community transport 

- Rail - opportunity for NWML proposals and connecfions to 
NPR and HS2; Borderlands; Cambrian Coast; Deeside 
Stafion 

- Road network: A483, A55 and Aston Hill; Llanbedr, also A55 
Menai Crossing and Holyhead Port Access/Egress 

- Walking and cycling  
- Housing and economic growth  
- Access to Eryri 
- Supporfing tourism while also minimising its adverse 

effects upon local communifies  
- Supporfing industry 
- Origin and desfinafion of trips, and importance of Cross 

border movement 

Responsible 
Officer/Author (TBC) 
(with access to TfW 
datasets) 

Idenfify RTP 
Vision 

Current LTP vision:  
“The North Wales Local Authorifies aim to remove barriers to 
economic growth, prosperity and well-being by delivering safe, 
sustainable, affordable and effecfive transport networks.” 
Consider:  
- Access to employment, services, and aftracfions 
- High quality acfive travel and public transport networks 
- Carbon 

Responsible 
Officer/Author – 
must be agreed in 
collaborafion with 
LAs and stakeholders 

P
age 28



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

Idenfify RTP 
Smart 
Objecfives 

Current LTP higher level outcomes focus on: 
- Transport network resilience  
- Capacity and safety enhancements 
- Integrafion with strategic PT services  
- Improved links to employment  
- Access to services  
- Encouraging sustainable travel 
Consider: 
- Large scale development/employment sites such as 

Wylfa/Trawsfynydd 
- The North Wales Growth Deal 
- Regional Economic Framework 
- Reduce carbon emissions. 
- Wellbeing 
- Support North Wales businesses. 
- Improving public transport connecfivity 
- Making public transport more affordable 
- Enhancing rail services and improving cross-border 

connecfivity 
- Sustainable access to Eryri Nafional Park 
- Supporfing the tourist economy 
- Supporfing growth in Enterprise Zones 
- Increasing acfive travel  
- Supporfing / encouraging the take up of EVs 
- Safety 
- Freeport - enhancing freight connecfivity to key 

desfinafions including ports  
- Possibility of Investment Zone in North East Wales 

Responsible 
Officer/Author – 
must be agreed in 
collaborafion with 
LAs and stakeholders 

Governance  Idenfify Governance arrangements for development, sign off 
and adopfion of plan. Include officer review groups and CJC.  

Responsible 
Officer/Author – in 
collaborafion with 
Transport Sub-
Commiftee  P

age 29



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

Develop a 
Stakeholder 
management 
Plan 

No requirement to consult on this secfion. NWTC report 
feedback could be used to inform the case for change.  
 
Link to governance and sign-off meefings 
Agree method of informing public and stakeholders – there is a 
need to ensure that the message is heard amongst as may 
residents as possible, with limited budget and minimising 
environmental impact. 

Agree approach for engaging stakeholders, considering email 

Produce materials – bilingual, clear and concise messaging etc 

Agree and develop a feedback plafform such as a focused 
quesfionnaire (the TfW plafform may be best placed to host 
this regionally)  

Agree the required number of drop in events and the locafions 
of these.  

Agree any arrangements and the approach for engaging 
elected members.  

Consider innovafive way of engaging with hard to engage 
groups  

Responsible 
Officer/Author – 
must be agreed in 
collaborafion with 
LAs and stakeholders 

Review by local 
authority 
officers 

 Local authorifies Mid December 2023 to early January 2024 

Approval by 
CJC 

 CJC, supported by 
CJC and local 
authority officers 

Meefing on 26th January 2024 

Developing the Regional Transport Plan 

Idenfifying the 
High-Level 
intervenfions 
and policies 

Idenfify the policies that will address the issues/opportunifies 
and support delivery of the objecfives.  
 

Responsible 
Officer/Author – in 
collaborafion with 
Transport Sub-

Draft before public consultafion to be submifted to 
WG by 29th May 2024.  
 P

age 30



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

(Close working with parallel development of Regional Strategic 
Development Plans to ensure policy alignment) 
 
Outcomes from exisfing LTP: 

1. Connecfions to Key Desfinafions and Markets: Support for 
Economic Growth through an improvement in the efficiency, 
reliability, resilience, and connecfivity of movement, including 
freight, within and between North Wales and other regions and 
countries (with a parficular focus on accessibility to the 
Enterprise Zones and an improvement in the vitality and 
viability of towns and other key centres).  

2. Access to Employment: Providing inclusive and affordable 
access to employment and training (with a focus on the most 
deprived communifies).  

3. Access to Services: Promofion of social inclusion and well-
being through inclusive and affordable access to educafion, 
health services and other key services and facilifies (with a 
focus on the most deprived communifies).  

4. Increasing Levels of Walking and Cycling: for both necessary 
travel and recreafion, by residents and visitors.  

5. Improved Safety and Security: of both actual and perceived 
safety of travel by all modes  

6. Benefits and Minimised Impacts on the Environment: the 
potenfial for transport improvements to posifively affect the 
local and global natural and built environment will have been 
maximised and negafive impacts minimised, including 
adaptafion to the effects of climate change 

 

Commiftee and/or 
CJC 

(this assumes that much of the groundwork will be 
presented in the imminent receipt of the North 
Wales Transport Commission) 

Developing the Regional Transport Delivery Plan P
age 31



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

Review of 
schemes from 
exisfing LTP 

Undertake a review of the schemes included in the exisfing LTP, 
considering:  
The guidance requires schemes in the RTDP to be “ranked in 
order of priority in terms of impact on delivering the Wales 
Transport Strategy - Llwybr Newydd (WTS) priorifies. These 
should be the schemes that local transport authorifies intend 
to invest in to deliver the RTPs”. 
 

Responsible 
Officer/Author – in 
collaborafion with 
LAs 

Draft BEFORE PUBLIC CONSULTATION  to be 
submifted to WG by 29th May 2024.  
 

Idenfify a 
methodology 
for priorifising 
schemes 

Idenfify and agree a robust methodology for assessing schemes 
against impact on WTS priorifies and sub priorifies. Possibly 10-
point system from -5 to +5 for scale of impact.  
WTS priorifies are:  
- Bring services to people in order to reduce the need for 

people to use their cars on a daily basis 
- Accessible, sustainable and efficient transport services and 

infrastructure 
- Behaviour change 

Responsible 
Officer/Author – in 
collaborafion with 
LAs  

Priorifise 
schemes 

Priorifise schemes using the methodology idenfified above.  

Assessment, and narrafive around results, should be cognisant 
that different funding streams may have different priorifies and 
requirements 

Independent and 
Imparfial partner 
i.e., consultancy 

Agree 
Priorifised 
scheme list 

 Officer review and 
CJC approval 

Develop the Integrated Well-being Assessment 

Step 1 Review the Case for Change, undertake scoping to establish 
what specialist work packages may be needed to develop the 
IWBA including any supporfing statutory impact assessments, 
and develop a brief/s to commission that work and ensure it is 
fed into the process of developing the RTP. 

Responsible 
Officer/Author 

Late autumn 2023 

P
age 32



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

Step 2 An integrated well-being framework should be developed and 
agreed with key partners. Opfions for policies or projects 
should be reviewed against that framework.  
 
As set out in WelTAG guidance Welsh transport appraisal 
guidance (WelTAG) 2022 (gov.wales) 
 
- How will the programme or project benefit people and 

communifies?  
- How will it benefit the environment?  
- How will it benefit places and the economy?  
- How will it benefit culture and the Welsh language? 

Responsible 
Officer/Author 

Draft BEFORE PUBLIC CONSULTATION  to be 
submifted to WG by 29th May 2024.  

Step 3 When the draft RTP is published for consultafion: it should be 
accompanied by a draft IWBA report showing how well-being 
has been taken into account and how the five ways of working 
have been followed. 

Responsible 
Officer/Author 

Prior to consultafion 

Step 4 When the final RTP is submifted to WG it should be 
accompanied by a final IWBA report taking on board any 
consultafion responses.  

Responsible 
Officer/Author 

29th March 2025 

Public and Stakeholder consultafion 

Plan proposed 
consultafion 
period 

As per the stakeholder management plan 
Produce materials – bilingual, clear and concise messaging etc 

Develop a feedback plafform such as a focused quesfionnaire 
(the TfW plafform may be best placed to host this regionally)  

Should they be needed, book the required number of drop in 
events and the locafions of these.  

Make any arrangements for engaging elected members.  

Responsible 
Officer/Author – 
approval by CJC 
before it goes live 

Consultafion after submission of first draft to WG 
(late May).  
 
Need to avoid consultafion in summer holidays but 
have next draft ready by late October. 
 
NOTE - June / July 2024 appears the best fime  

Aftend any 
drop in events 

Staffing levels to be agreed by LAs Staffing levels to be 
agreed by LAs 

 

Update Draft Plan 

WG feedback Review and acfion WG feedback Lead author Between May 2024 and 31st Oct 2024 P
age 33

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2022-08/welsh-transport-appraisal-guidance-weltag-2022_0.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2022-08/welsh-transport-appraisal-guidance-weltag-2022_0.pdf


 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

Consultafion 
feedback 

Review and acfion consultafion feedback Lead author 

Monitoring and Evaluafion Plan (MEP) 

Contribufion to 
Nafional 
Priorifies 

Develop a MEP that monitors regional progress in achieving the 
nafional priorifies and ambifions in the WTS will be monitored, 
measured and evaluated. This must include the region’s 
contribufion to nafional decarbonisafion and modal shift 
targets. 

Lead author after 
discussion with LAs 
 

Guidance unclear on when MEP needed 

Agree 
measures to 
monitor 

Idenfify a set of measures with baseline informafion for each. 
The measures can include qualitafive outcomes and 
quanfitafive measures. Note that CJCs are required to record 
progress annually 

Lead author after 
discussion with LAs 
 

 A comprehensive evaluafion should be prepared after three 
years to assess whether the RTP is delivering its outcomes, 
providing value for money and whether there are any 
unintended consequences. This should follow published 
guidance and best pracfice on evaluafion.   
The results of this comprehensive evaluafion will feed into the 
subsequent RTP for each CJC, and the subsequent NTDP.  
 

Lead author after 
discussion with LAs 
 

After submission 

Equalifies Impact Assessment 

Undertake 
Equalifies 
Impact 
Assessment 
(EqIA) 

Consider impact on all protected characteristics. The EqIA 
needs to be integrated with development of the plan. 
Consultation should include seeking information to strengthen 
understanding of impacts including socio economic impact 
under Section 1 EqAct 

 

TBC Guidance unclear on when EqIA needed  

Environmental Impact Assessment and Habitats Regulafion Assessment 

Undertake 
Environmental 

Impact 
Assessment 

Consider all statutory requirements.  
 
Note: lack of internal resource to carry out these impact 
assessments 

  

P
age 34



 

Version: DRAFT  Date: November 2023 

Work Package Descripfion Lead Organisafion Key Dates 

(EIA) and 
Habitats 

Regulafion 
Assessment 

(HRA) 

 

P
age 35


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE - APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS
	Item 5 - Appendix 1
	Item 5 - Appendix 2

	6 DRAFT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR DEVELOPING A NEW REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN FOR NORTH WALES
	Item 6 - Appendix
	1 INTRODUCTION
	1.1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	1.2 BACKGROUND
	1.3 NORTH WALES CONTEXT
	1.3.1 NORTH WALES TRANSPORT COMMISSION
	1.3.2 NORTH AND MID WALES TRUNK ROAD AGENCY
	1.3.3 SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AND CONSIDERATIONS


	2 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
	2.1. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: GOAL
	2.2. POLICY CONTEXT
	2.3. MILESTONES – HIGH LEVEL OVERVIEW
	2.4. HIGH-LEVEL RISKS

	3 RESOURCES
	3.1 CURRENT RESOURCES
	3.2 RESOURCES REQUIRED, COSTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

	4 GOVERNANCE
	5 APPENDICIES



